ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE HEALTH, EDUCATI ON AND SOCI AL SERVI CES
STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 24, 2004
3:06 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Peggy Wl son, Chair
Representative Carl Gatto, Vice Chair
Representati ve John Coghill
Representative Kelly Wl f

Representati ve Sharon Ci ssna

VEMBERS ABSENT

Represent ati ve Paul Seaton
Representative Mary Kapsner

COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO 394
"An Act extending the Al aska Comm ssion on Aging."

- MOVED CS HB 394(HES) OQUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 197

"An Act relating to intensive famly preservation services and
intensive famly reunification services; and providing for an
effective date.”

- HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 394

SHORT TITLE: COWM SSI ON ON AG NG
SPONSOR( S): REPRESENTATI VE(S) HOLM

01/ 20/ 04 (H READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
01/ 20/ 04 (H STA, HES

02/ 10/ 04 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 102

02/ 10/ 04 (H Heard & Held

02/ 10/ 04 (H M NUTE( STA)

02/ 17/ 04 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 102

02/ 17/ 04 (H Moved Qut of Conmttee

02/ 17/ 04 (H M NUTE( STA)

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -1- February 24, 2004



02/ 18/ 04 (H) STA RPT 6DP 1NR

02/ 18/ 04 (H) DP; GRUENBERG, SEATON, HOLM LYNN,
02/ 18/ 04 (H) BERKOW TZ, WEYHRAUCH, NR. COGHI LL
02/ 18/ 04 (H) FI N REFERRAL ADDED AFTER HES

02/ 24/ 04 (H) HES AT 3:00 PM CAP| TOL 106

BILL: HB 197
SHORT TITLE: | NTENSI VE FAM LY PRESERVATI ON SERVI CES
SPONSOR( S): REPRESENTATI VE(S) Cl SSNA

03/ 17/ 03 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
03/ 17/ 03 (H) HES, FIN
02/ 24/ 04 (H) HES AT 3:00 PM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

BARBARA COTTI NG, St af f

to Representative JimHolm

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Presented the  bill on behal f of
Representative Hol m sponsor of HB 394.

STEVE ASHVAN, Director

Di vision of Senior and Disability Services

Departnent of Health and Social Services

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 394 and answered
questions fromthe nenbers.

MARI E DARLI N, Coor di nat or

Capital Gty Task Force

AARP Al aska

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 394.

REPRESENTATI VE SHARON Cl SSNA

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified before the commttee as sponsor
of HB 197.

MARCI SCHM DT, vol unt eer

Fam |y First Partnership

Wasi |l a, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 197.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 2- February 24, 2004



SHELLEY LEAVITT, Ph.D., Associate Director

Institute of Fam |y Devel opnent;

Board Menmber, National Family Preservation Network

Federal Way, Washi ngton

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 197 and answered
questions fromthe nenbers.

MARCI E KENNAI, Deputy Conmi ssi oner

Ofice of Children's Services

Departnent of Health and Social Services

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 197 and answered questions
fromthe nmenbers.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 04-14, SIDE A
Nunmber 0001

CHAI R PEGGY W LSON call ed the House Health, Education and Soci al
Services Standing Commttee neeting to order at 3:06 p.m
Representatives WIlson, Gatto, WlIf, Coghill, and Ci ssna were
present at the call to order. Chair WIson announced for the
record that Representative Seaton has been excused.

HB 394- COVM SSI ON ON AQ NG
Number 0050

CHAI R W LSON announced that the first order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 394, "An Act extending the Alaska Conm ssion on
Agi ng. "

Nunmber 0092

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO noved to adopt CS HB 394, 23-LS1534\D,
M schel, 2/19/04, as the working docunent. There being no
objection, HB 394, version D, was adopted as the working
docunent before the House Health, Education and Social Services
Standi ng Conm ttee.

Nunber 0155

BARBARA COTTING Staff to Representative Jim Holm Al aska State
Legi slature, presented the bill on behalf of Representative
Hol m sponsor of HB 394. She explained that the commttee

substitute that the nenbers just adopted as the working docunent

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 3- February 24, 2004



adds sections 2 and 3 to the original bill. The original bill
was very short because it consisted of one section that extended
the sunset [of the Al aska Comm ssion on Aging].

M5. COTTING explained that in 2003, Executive Oder 108 noved
many conm ssions to different departnents. It is inportant to
note that at that time the Conm ssion on Aging was noved from
the Departnent of Adm nistration to the Department of Health and

Soci al  Services. Legislative Legal and Research Services
believes that it is inportant to clarify that point and that is
the purpose of sections 2 and 3, she said. It is just a

housekeepi ng neasure.
Nurmber 0260

STEVE ASHVAN, Director, Division of Senior and D sability
Servi ces, Departnent of Health and Social Services, testified in
support of HB 394 and answered questions from the nenbers. He
expl ai ned that the division adm nisters grant prograns under the
A der Anmericans Act. These prograns used to be adm nistered by
the Comm ssion on Aging, he added. The division has been
working very closely with the Conmission on Aging as the
reorgani zati on progresses, M. Ashman stated. He expl ai ned t hat
since the Alaska Comm ssion on Aging was created in the late
1970s, it has done a great job of neeting the needs of the
el derly, and [the adm nistration] supports its continuation.

Number 0302

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL conmented that he read the legislative
audit report [on the Al aska Comm ssion on Aging, dated Cctober
1, 2003] which was done before the conm ssion was noved from
[the Departnment of Admnistration to the Departnment of Health
and Soci al Services]. Representative Coghill said that he is
concerned with the grant making process and asked M. Ashman to
explain the changes that have been made to that process. He
told the conmmittee that he had the auditor conme to his office
and discuss the report with him Representative Coghill noted
that the auditor is at the neeting today should there be need
for clarification.

Nunmber 0372
MR. ASHMVAN replied that he has also read the audit report. He
said he believes the problens that Representative Coghill is

referring to occurred in fiscal year 2002, when the program was
over at the Division of Senior Services in the Departnent of

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -4- February 24, 2004



Adm ni stration. The first problem pertains to the Senior
Enpl oyment Program [which was authorized] under federal |aw
The program was supposed to be providing tenporary training
services to older Alaskans, 55 years old or older, to enable
them to reenter the workforce, he said. However, what happened
was that many of the grantees were using those enpl oyees to fil

| ong-term positions within its organizations. This [practice]
was clearly against federal Ilegislation, he stated. The
di vision has changed that practice, although sone |atitude has
been extended in rural areas where there is a |lack of enploynent
opportunities. M. Ashman commented that approximately 80
percent of the seniors [in this progran] are [noving from
training to enploynent] within six nonths, which nmeans the state
is now in conpliance with federal |[|aws. There are still sone
grantees that are admnistering the program he acknow edged,
but assured the commttee that the division is keeping an eye on
t hem

Number 0501

MR. ASHMAN sai d he believes another problemthe report cited was
the lack of reporting to ensure that the use of federal funds
was in conpliance wth federal program requirenents. He
commented that the issue was the lack of on-site audits. A plan
was put together two years ago to focus on those two areas and
he told the nenbers that he believes the division is on target.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL asked M. Ashman to confirm that [$13]
mllion in federal funds are adm nistered through this program
He asked what portion of those funds are general funds dollars.

Nunber 0574

MR. ASHVAN replied that historically the state's match is about
24 percent in general funds. The m ninum match requirenent is
15 percent. He pointed out that in the division' s budget this
fiscal year there is a $200,000 reduction in general fund
contributions because grantees will be asked to pay 10 percent.
M. Ashman explained that currently between 95 percent and 98
percent of the grantees do have a 10 percent cash match. The
state picks up 15 percent and the federal governnent covers the
bal ance.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL asked if the novenent of the division
fromone departnent to another has changed its m ssion.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 5- February 24, 2004



MR. ASHMAN responded that there is no change [in the m ssion] of
the Alaska Commission on Aging because the mnmission was
established under the dder Anericans Act which created the
Commi ssion on Aging, fornmerly the dder Al askans Comm ssion.
The only change that has occurred in this reorganization is the
renmoval of grant making ability from the Al aska Comm ssion on
Aging and transferring those duties to the Division of Senior
and Disability Services. The Departnent of Health and Soci al
Services has sone very well defined procedures in how the grant
process works, whereas the Departnent of Adm nistration did not
have that type of process in place, he added.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL asked if there will be a change in
accountability.

MR. ASHMVAN expl ai ned that while the Comm ssion on Aging will not
be mking any grants, the state plan is developed by the
Executive Director of the Commssion on Aging, and then is

presented in a series of public neetings. The Conmm ssion on
Aging finalizes the plan and presents it to the governor for
approval. In that plan is the intra-state funding formula which
says how the funds wll be distributed statewide, so the
commssion is key in that respect, he said. M. Ashman
enphasized that the conmission wll not be [awarding] any
grants. The division will work with the conmi ssion closely to

ensure that the grants are being managed consistently with the
desires of the Comm ssion on Aging and the state plan, he added.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL commented that he m sunderstood a
comm ssion nenber's testinobny in the House State Affairs
Standing Committee [on that point]. He asked if the conm ssion
menbers | ook at allocation paraneters.

MR. ASHMAN responded that the comm ssion nenbers |ook at the
intra-state funding fornmula that is included in the state plan,
and which identifies the priorities and areas where funding wl|l

go.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL asked if the comm ssion nenbers are nmade
up of regional representatives or are the nenbers appoi ntees.

Nunber 0784
MR. ASHVAN responded that according to Alaska | aw the conm ssion
nmenbers are appointed by the governor. No geographi cal

representation is required, he added. However, over the past 15
years that he has been associated with the comm ssion, there

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 6- February 24, 2004



have always been representatives from both the rural and urban
areas of Al aska. One requirenent for appointnment is that
menbers nust be a wuser of services either under the hone
comuni ty-based O der Anericans Act prograns and/or the Medicaid
progr ans. In summary, he said there is good representation
st at ew de.

Number 0833

M5. COITING directed the nenbers' attention to the handout in
the nenbers' packets from the Ofice of Boards and Conm ssions
whi ch highlights the requirenents of nenbers. She said part of
t hose requirenents read as foll ows:

Appoi ntnments shall be made to assure representation of
| ow-income and mnorities and rural/urban areas and
st at ewi de geogr aphi cal representation.

M5. COTTING stated that the requirements are well defined in the
Boards and Conm ssion statute.

CHAIR WLSON referred to the Legislative Audit report [dated
Cctober 1, 2003, page 17, paragraph two] which read:

W continue to recomrend the agency establish and
follow procedures to ensure that costs reported by
subrecipients conply with federal requirenents ..

CHAIR WLSON said one point that was noted [in the report] was
that there was a lack of periodic site visits. She asked M.
Ashman what specific steps he has taken to ensure that concern
is being addressed.

Number 0915

MR. ASHMVAN responded that under the corrected plan the division
put together, desk audits are being done. He noted it was not
bei ng done before. He agreed that the last two audit reports
cited the lack of periodic site visits as a problem M. Ashman
explained that there are 78 grantees and the division has a
staff of 3, so it is not physically or financially possible to
visit every grantee every year. The visits are being done on a
rotation basis; however, desk audits are being done [regularly].
He told the nenbers that whenever soneone else fromthe Division
of Senior and Disability Services happens to be in a particular
comunity, the division is mnmaking an effort to visit the
grantees while there. There may not be a review of the books at

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -7- February 24, 2004



that time, he commented. M. Ashman enphasi zed that there have
been increased audits over what was done in previous years.

Number 0963

CHAIR WLSON commented that there have been several statenents
made that in the grant process there was a bias in the awarding
of grants. She asked M. Ashman to address those [charges].

MR. ASHVAN explained that in FY 04 and FY 05 a new state plan
needed to be devel oped. Part of that plan is the intra-state
funding formula which is based on census information. The
previ ous census information and plans were based upon the 1990
census. Wen the new census cane out there was a redistribution
of [funding based on] senior «citizen [populations]. For
i nstance, there may have been a higher gromh of seniors in one
region over another region, so the funding formula changed.
There were winners and losers financially. He surm sed that
there could have been sone grantees who had been receiving nore
funding under the 1990 census, but then lost funding with the
new census report. M. Ashman enphasized that the nunber of
seniors has increased in all areas. The Conm ssion on Aging
requested that rather than having communities take the whole hit
in one year, it was requested that the federal governnent allow
a phase-in of that [redistribution in a] three-year plan. He
summari zed that he does not believe the grantees had a problem
with the process, but rather with [the way the census i npacted]
t he out come.

CHAIR WLSON asked M. Ashman if he could confidently tell her
that there will be inprovenent.

MR. ASHVAN assured Chair WIlson that there will be inprovenent.
Nunmber 1097

REPRESENTATIVE CISSNA told M. Ashman that an hour or two ago
she listened to seniors who had tel econferenced in to a neeting
fromten or nore coomunities. She was told that Al aska has the
second fastest growing aging population in the United States,
second to Nevada. Seniors now nmake up sonmething |ike 6 percent

of the popul ation, she said. Representative Ci ssna comrented
that in not many years it wll grow to 12 percent. These
seniors told of the gaps in services for conditions such as
Al zhei mer' s di sease. She asked how M. Ashman views this

growi ng problem

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 8- February 24, 2004



Nunber 1188

MR. ASHVAN agreed with Representative Cissna's coments. The
Al aska Comm ssion on Aging and the local senior netwrks are
| ooki ng at what |evel of services are being provided currently.
Once that assessnent is nmade, the [progranm] can be tailored to
neet the needs of the community. The division wll be | ooking
to see where the funds are being spent and pointing out that,
for exanple, 52 percent of funds are being spent on
transportation services and then assure that is where the need
is for a particular conmunity. Sone of the senior networks nay
not be aware of the way funds are being spent. M. Ashman said
that the division and the conmission wll be having those
di scussions on a |local |evel.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHILL noted that it is helpful to understand
that this is an evolving plan and a change of adm nistration
He asked how these changes inpact the scrutiny of grants. Are

there any nmgjor changes in the delivery of the plan.
Representative Coghill stated that based on what he has heard,
he is still not satisfied that he understands what the changes
will be.

MR. ASHVAN responded that he is not sure what Representative

Coghill is asking. He comented that when working with the
grantee agencies, the division wll be saying historically here
is where the funds have been used and the types of services
[provided] in this particular market. The division wll be
asking if these services have been neeting the needs of the
comunity. M. Ashman noted that many of the grantees are
Medi caid waiver providers and the division wll work to ensure
that they are nmaximzing the funds received. He assured
Representative Coghill that the division has regulations that
will be followed to ensure that those receiving the grants

adm nister them appropriately, and that the grantees are
submitting reports on tine before any advances are provi ded.

Number 1559

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL asked how this plan fits wth the hone
and conmunity-based waiver program assisted-living honmes, and
the huge network of agencies out there. Qovi ously, he said,
this group is very attuned to the needs of the communities. He
told M. Ashman he would like to have sone clarity in how the
needs are being identified and how the grants neet those needs.
For exanple, doesn't the comm ssion | ook at the nunber of people
and the limted nunber of dollars to neet those needs, and then

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 9- February 24, 2004



evaluate what is the w sest expenditure of those funds. He
asked if there is any change in the way these points are
exan ned.

MR. ASHVAN responded that the division will take a |ook at what
services are being provided currently in a comunity and nake
sure the services that are needed [are net], and if not, what
ki nd of changes need to be made [to address those deficiencies].
M. Ashman commented that he believes that is a |local issue that
the division will be working on to assure the right services are
bei ng provided. This will be done in conjunction with the
division and the commssion because while the division
adm nisters the grant programs; it is the comm ssion that puts
together the state plan, reviews it, does the public conmrent,
and works wth the |ocal comrmunities. The comm ssion wll work
side-by-side with [the division]. Utimtely, the state plan is
the plan that is submtted by the governor, he stated. He added
that the division will ensure that the admnistration of grants
are in conpliance with that state plan.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL said he would like sone clarification on
wher e t he conmmi ssion's [ duti es] start, wher e t he
admnistration's [duties] start, and at what point it converges.
How do to the two work together, and is there tension between
t he two, he asked.

MR. ASHVAN told the commttee that under Al aska statutes the
executive director prepares the state plan. The O der Anerican
Act requires a state plan and a senior advisory commttee, which
in Alaska is the Al aska Conm ssion on Aging. The executive
director works for and is hired by the Al aska Conm ssion on
Agi ng, subject to the governor's appointnent because it is a
partially exenpt position. He reiterated that the executive
director puts together the plan in conjunction with the desires
of the conmssion. After the plan is devel oped, the conm ssion
spends approximtely six nonths conducting public hearings on
t hat pl an. The comments and feedback received in those public
hearings are incorporated into the plan, he said.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHILL asked if the division's nove from the
Department of Admnistration to the Departnment of Health and

Social Services affects how the plan works. Has the nove
i npacted how different agencies work together. Representati ve
Coghi |l asked how the plan affects people at hone. Are there

changes in the categories that are being offered, he asked.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -10- February 24, 2004



MR. ASHVAN responded that the reorganization does nmake sense
because the division is the "one-stop-shop” for all long-term
care services. The Division of Senior and Disability Services
not only manages the Medicaid Waiver Program but also the other
three long-term care options. He said the division is |ooking
at the broader picture of how all these prograns fit together to
make sure the needs are being net wth whatever types of
prograns are avail able. He said that he would not want to see
the division go into a community and tell it that it needs
respite [care], for exanple. He said he wants the division to
say to a comunity here's what is currently offered; here's
what's avail able; ask what is working and what is not; and offer
sonme prograns that are available to neet the needs of seniors in
the community.

Nunmber 1678

REPRESENTATI VE COGHILL said that he still needs further
clarification on the grants issue before he can vote for the
reaut hori zation of the Al aska O der Al askans Conm ssion.

MR. ASHVAN replied that, for exanple, when there are Title III
funds [available] for nutrition transportation services (NTS),
it is the grantees that conmes to the division with a proposal

The division knows how nuch noney is available based on the
inter-state funding fornula. So regionally it is known how much

noney can go into that particular region, he said. It is the
grantee that tells the division how nmuch it wants to spend on
transportation, information referral, and other categories.

Wthin the big picture, it is the grantee that is deciding what
| evel of services are being nade. He told the nenbers that the
guestion the division has is when there are nultiple grantees
within a particular region, do the grantees all know what's
going on, and are the dollars that are being spent the best use
of those funds.

Nunber 1743

REPRESENTATI VE COCGHILL said that the need is great and he wants
to ensure that he has a clear understanding of the plan. He
said he has one other question which he believes cannot be
answered in this conmttee, but which he would welcone
suggestions from M. Ashman. He said he is aware of the fact
that there is a huge federal dollar contribution, and a huge
anount of federal noney that does not go through the state, but
goes directly to the comunity. Representative Coghill said his
concern is that many of these dollars are going into the sane

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -11- February 24, 2004



service market for simlar needs. He said he wants to make sure
that one funding source is not conpeting with another source in
t he sane market.

Number 1797
CHAIR WLSON commented that she is concerned because funds are

so limted and seniors are so precious to Al aska. She asked M.
Ashman where the |ieutenant governor's faith-based initiatives

fits into this. Chair WIlson said that what neighbors and
famly use to do for each other, is no |onger being done on a
vol unteer basis because it is being paid for. She added t hat

she is concerned that sonething is driving this nachine. Chair
Wlson asked if the division 1is |looking at encouraging
vol unt eeri sm For exanple, there are nmany things such as
grocery shoppi ng, babysitting, and household chores which could
be done free of charge by a volunteer. She encouraged this kind
of volunteerism so that the things that really need to be paid
for can be funded in a |larger scope. In some cases, grandma use
to baby-sit for free, but now she's being paid. Chair Wlson's
said it is not that she doesn't want grandma to have sone extra
spendi ng noney, but that when noney is spent on things that
could be acconplished through volunteerism it may not be
possible to fund things that are really needed.

MR. ASHMAN replied that one of his staff is assigned to the
| i eutenant governor's faith-based initiatives. He said he
believes that many would be surprised at the nunmber of grantees
that are working with the sane [faith-based] organizations. For
exanple, if it is known that a particular person does not have
any food in their cupboard, a faith-based organization wll
provi de that. Fai t h- based organi zations, through the 501(c)(3)
or nonprofit status, wll participate in sone of these sane
prograns that the division has.

Number 1922

MR. ASHVAN shared his concern that what [fam |ies and nei ghbors]
use to do for each other seens to be shifting sonewhere else
He said that he believes that many have heard about the
regul atory changes that reflect cost-containment neasures in the
division's budget to elimnate sone of those expenses. There
are instances where the division is paying for respite services
to a paid famly nenber, so they can go out and provi de services

to soneone el se. The division is saying that it wll not
respite a paid care provider, he comrented. There is a higher
dependence on famly nenbers, in that the division is

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -12- February 24, 2004



elimnating the use of respite and chores services and saying
that if there is sonmeone in that household who can provide those
services, then he/she needs to be doing them Qur proposed
regul ations [which reflect those changes] have gone out to the
public for comment, and should be adopted shortly.

CHAIR WLSON reiterated that she is not saying that people do
not need a break, but that perhaps a nei ghbor could cone in and
hel p out and it would not cost anything.

MR. ASHMAN responded that the division is limting respite to 10

hours per week or 520 hours per year. He said he believes that
is fair and consistent wth what other states have been
provi di ng. He agreed that there certainly should be respite

[ assi st ance].

M5. COITING told the nmenbers that she has a copy of the draft
plan for the next four years, which was obtained from the
Department of Health and Social Services.

Nunber 2018

REPRESENTATI VE WOLF replied that he would |ike a copy. He asked
M. Ashman to elaborate on the regulations that are being
pr oposed.

MR. ASHVAN asked if he and one of his staff, who is very
know edgeabl e, could neet with himto discuss the regulations in
detail .

REPRESENTATI VE WOLF shared that this past sumrer his nother-in-
law had a stroke, and said that he was surprised by the
di scouraging attitude his famly encountered in choosing to care
for her at hone. He said this was a famly stepping-up to care
for her; it was not going to cost anyone anything. He asked M.
Ashman to comment on that prevailing attitude.

Number 2086

MR. ASHVAN comrented that his response would be dangerous. He
shared that his famly recently did the sane thing. Hi s father
passed away in his own hone, he said. When his wife's nother
was dying, during the last six nonths of her life his wife cared
for her for four nonths. He said he believes that it is the way
a person is raised, nore than anything else. M. Ashman said
that is where personal beliefs conme in. He said he could not
say why [Representative WlIlf's famly was discouraged from

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -13- February 24, 2004



caring for his nother-in-law. He reiterated that he believes
it is how a person is raised.

REPRESENTATI VE WOLF shared that his nother-in-law taught schoo

for 36 years in California. She's 74 years old now and upset
that this is happening to her. He said it took a while for him
to convince her that she is on the biggest teaching assignnent
that she ever encountered, because now she's teaching her Kkids
conpassion. It is a very valuable |esson.

Nunmber 2168

MARI E DARLIN, Coordinator, Capital City Task Force, AARP Al aska,
testified in support of HB 374. She told the nenbers that AARP
Al aska fully supports the continuation of the Conmm ssion on
Agi ng. Over the vyears AARP Alaska has worked wth the
comm ssion on may issues and |looks to them and hopes to
continue to look to them as a group that will be working with
organi zations such as AARP to ensure that there is a plan that
wll neet the needs of comrunities. Ms. Darlin explained that
currently AARP Al aska is one of the groups the conm ssion works
with in determining what the needs are. Many of the issues that
have been discussed today are concerns of AARP Al aska as well
She added that she served on the Juneau Comnm ssion on Aging for
about six years, and said that it is inportant for the state
commssion to go to the |local commssions on aging when
determ ning the needs of the community. Sonme conmmunities do not
have a |ocal conmm ssion, but nost conmmunities are interested in
havi ng one, she added.

Nunber 2255

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL commented that he believes every nenber
should attend at | east one comm ssion debat e.

Nunmber 2263

REPRESENTATI VE CI SSNA noved to report CS HB 394, 23-LS1534\D
M schel , 2/ 19/ 04, out of comittee W th i ndi vi dual
recommendati ons and the acconpanying fiscal notes. There being
no objection, CS HB 394(HES) was reported out of the House
Heal t h, Education and Social Services Standing Commttee.

HB 197-1 NTENSI VE FAM LY PRESERVATI ON SERVI CES
Nunber 2324

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -14- February 24, 2004



CHAI R WLSON announced that the final order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 197, "An Act relating to intensive famly
preservation services and intensive famly reunification
services; and providing for an effective date.™

REPRESENTATI VE ~ SHARON  Cl SSNA, Al aska State Legi sl ature,
testified before the commttee as sponsor of HB 197.

TAPE 04-14, SIDE B
Nunber 2394

CHAIR WLSON said that an individual is on-line that nust |eave
at 4 ppm and would like to give that person an opportunity to
speak.

Number 2323

REPRESENTATIVE CISSNA told the nenbers that this |egislation
introduces a nodel which is described in the |anguage of the
bill. Section 9 [page 9, lines 23 through 25] inserts |anguage
t hat reads:

The departnent or agency shall also consider the
eligibility of the child and famly for intensive
famly preservation services or intensive famly

reuni fication services, or both, under AS 47.10.550.

REPRESENTATI VE CI SSNA explained that Section 10 Ilists the
requirenents and steps that workers wll wuse in identifying
clients, collecting data, and accessing the tools necessary to
submt a report to the governor by Novenber 30, 2004. The

report w | | descri be t he st udy, concl usi ons, and
reconmendat i ons. Representative G ssna summarized that the
study will determine if intensive famly preservation [and
reunification] services are needed and if needed, 1ook for

funding to inplenent it.

REPRESENTATI VE CI SSNA conmented that Dr. Shelley Leavitt is at
the neeting today to share what other states have done. She
noted that there are sone identifiable sources of funding for a
pil ot nodel to make sure this plan will work for Al aska.

REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA shared her personal experiences. In 1963
she worked in the social services field with some of the
popul ation that is being discussed today. She said that "up
streanf is where the work needs to be done. Represent ati ve
Ci ssna enphasized that she believes prevention should be the

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -15- February 24, 2004



first priority. Having been a foster parent of nore than 14
kids in the late 1980s, she said she found that the Division of
Youth and Family Services had nore than 1,000 kids in foster
care at that tine. In a decade that nunber has doubled, she
stated. During that next decade she shared that she worked as a
therapist in a program that worked wth that sanme popul ati on of
ki ds. This is a toxic problem that has a huge cost. One of
those costs is not just financial; there are faces that go with
this program and that is why she said she has such intense

feelings about it. Representative Cissna explained that this
program steps in at the juncture of where the child is about to
be renoved from the famly. It is not the big fix, she added,
it is alittle fix that is relatively inexpensive if |ooking at
the big picture. These services have been extraordinarily

successful in the places that it has been inpl enented.
Nunber 2146

MARCI SCHM DT, volunteer, Famly First Partnership, testified in
support of HB 197. She told the nenbers that she believes the
pendul um has noved to the point that [children are renoved from
the hone] and nothing is done to get famlies back together.
Ms. Schm dt said that she knows of sone instances where famlies
coul d have been put back together if services had been provided.

Number 2090
SHELLEY LEAVITT, Ph.D., Associate Director, Institute of Famly

Devel opnent; Board Menber, National Fam |y Preservation Network,
testified in support of HB 197 and answered questions from the

menbers. She told the nenbers that the bill provides for
i ntensi ve famly preservation services and i ntensi ve
reunification services, which are short-term in-hone crisis
intervention; skill-building services, which are designed to

keep children safe, strengthen famlies, keep famlies together,
and reduce the reliance and over-reliance on out of home
pl acenent . Intensive famly reunification services have been
wi dely used and replicated in 20 to 30 states and nine other
countries for close to 30 years, she stated. There has been a
great deal of research done on the services in tracking the
ef fectiveness of keeping children safe, inmproving famly
functioning so that children can thrive and survive, and for
potential cost savings for states.

DR LEAVITT told the nenbers that many states, including

Washi ngton, have chosen to spend noney to offer services to
prevent [out of home] placenent so famlies can be strengthened,

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -16- February 24, 2004



instead of spending it on child welfare, nental health, juvenile
justice, and out of honme placenent. Strong famlies are
critical to the healthy devel opnment of children and teenagers,
she sai d.

Nunber 2011

DR. LEAVITT conmmented that it was interesting listening to the
di scussion on the earlier bill [HB 393] because many of the
issues that are effecting the elder population are also
ef fecting famlies. | nt ensi ve famly preservation or
reunification services is not the total fix; however, it is a
critical piece of a systemto keep children safe and strengthen
famlies, she said. These services would enhance i nfornal
support within the famly including relatives, neighborhoods,
faith-based organizations, and churches, she added. Once the
intensive services are conpleted, it 1is inportant to have
soneone there to provide support. It may be an elderly person
hel ping to watch the children and in turn receive sone kind of
reci procal hel p, she added.

DR. LEAVITT told the nenbers that the latest nobst dranmatic
research available is out of the state of Mchigan. This study
was done on a controlled group through the courts, who received
short-term service of four to eight weeks. After one year, over
90 percent of the famlies remained together safely. Bef ore
being included in this study less than half, <close to 40
percent, of the control group had their children renoved from
their hones and in sone cases many tines.

DR LEAVITT commented that one inpetus across states in
i npl enenting this program is the cost savings. In state after
state, when collecting data it is found that out of hone
pl acenent costs much nore than preserving the famly. She
enphasi zed that this does not nean that every famly wll remain
together or that there is not a need for out of hone placenent;
however, she said the need can be reduced. In Washi ngton State
the cost of these services is about $2,700 per child, conpared
to basic foster care which is about $12,000, $30,000 or nore for
therapeutic care, and $100,000 or nore for residenti al
treatnment, Dr. Leavitt stated. The state of North Carolina,

whi ch i mpl enent ed i ntensi ve famly preservation and
reuni fication services st at ew de for many years, has
denonstrated that for every dollar that is spent on preservation
services, the state saved $2 to $3 in placenent costs. In the

state of Al abama, which has been under a consent decree in the

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -17- February 24, 2004



child welfare system for nearly 10 years has al so denonstrated
an enornmpus cost savings in their state's placenent costs.

Nunmber 1865

CHAIR WLSON asked why this isn't already being done [in
Al aska]. It appears to be a "no-brainer."” This kind of program
seens to be a commopn sense [approach to what needs to be] done.
She asked if states other than Al aska are not doing this?

DR. LEAVITT responded that these services have been very comon
in states for at |east a decade. The pendul um swi ngs, she said.
There may be an interest in strengthening famlies, and then
there may be situation which changes [that trend]. For exanple,
there may be a death [of a child] that is publicized and is one
deat h out of hundreds of thousands; however, the pendul um sw ngs
to renoving children [fromtheir famlies] and relying on these
nore expensive alternatives, she said.

Nunber 1817

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL pointed out that the wong effective date
is in this bill and suggested it be changed before the bill
| eaves committee. One struggle that he has with this bill is
that a program is created that treats some people nore special
t han ot hers. That is hard to deal wth, he said. It is
difficult to provide special treatnment to sone people, but not
to others. He said he believes this service will end up costing
the state nore. Representative Coghill said that he would

prefer to have a policy set forth that says the famly is to be
preserved, [and intervention should take place] at the point
where [a problen] is discovered.

DR. LEAVITT told the nenbers that federal |aw under the Adoption
and Safe Famlies Act of 1997 and an earlier |aw has enphasized
preservation and reasonable efforts for famlies. The act al so
enphasi zes permanency for children because it is known that
permanent and stable hones are related to good outcomes for

ki ds. The federal law also pushes states to have shorter
tinmeframes for making decisions about children and reunifying
famlies. Dr. Leavitt summarized that the focus and heart of
the federal law is in trying to strengthen and preserve
famlies.

Nunber 1714

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 18- February 24, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL responded that is where his heart is in
this issue as well. He said he agrees with the concept and
woul d push for laws that would protect the famly at a higher
| evel , because the children are being protected. Representative
Coghill said the struggle he has is how to mandate it. Every
social worker has a different set of eyes, he said. He
questioned whether these services would provide social workers
wi th enough tools to [preserve the famly].

Nunmber 1668

DR. LEAVITT said one service is not a quick fix or the only fix,
and when changing child welfare practice in the field, there
needs to be a nuch nore involved process. She told the nenbers
that what wunderpins the famly preservation novenent are the
val ues and perspective that puts safety as the highest priority
and focuses on enpowering the famly to ensure safety [of the
chil dren].

REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA acknow edged that there are parts of the
continuum of services that are needed in prevention, which would
prevent the famly fromrequiring services to begin with or the

first tine a famly needs services. These services, however,
are only used when the courts are ready to renove the children
from the hone, she said. This is the last effort to keep the

children with the famly, Representative G ssna enphasi zed.

REPRESENTATI VE COCGHI LL said he understands what Representative
Cissna is saying. He pointed out that with this bill the state
is creating a hurdle for that group only. He stated that he is
not sure that this is the way to address [the problen.

DR, LEAVITT comented that nany states have tried to revanp
their child welfare system by putting a lid on this huge
bl eeding of noney into the foster care system She said nost
kids that go into foster care, eventually go honme wth
attachnent problens and nmany other problens. As a great
exanple, she said, the state of Al abama started wth the
intensive famly preservation services to prevent placenent
[outside of the hone] and have noved those sanme services and
phi |l osophy much earlier onto famly support. Dr. Leavitt said
that her goal has always been to work herself out of a job.
There needs to be a stop in the flow of children [being renoved
fromtheir hone].

CHAIR WLSON suggested that Representative Cissna get the
effective date changed and the bill can come back before the

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -19- February 24, 2004



committee at another tine. She said she would like to hear from
the departnent on this bill

Nunber 1419

MARCI E  KENNAI , Deputy  Conmi ssi oner, Ofice of Children's
Services, Departnent of Health and Social Services, testified on
HB 197 and answered questions from the nenbers. She told the
menbers that the departnent is taking a neutral position on this
bill because it believes that the division is already noving in
this direction. She said that while this is a good [idea], it
does not need to be [egislated. There are an array of famly

preservation services available to clients. Intensive famly
services is not available yet, but there is novenent in that
direction, she added. Ms. Kennai rem nded the nenbers of the

di scussions before the committee last week and told of the
Fam |y-to-Family initiative that is being brought to the state.
She said she believes that out of this initiative the state
woul d eventual ly get the intensive fam |y services.

M5. KENNAI told the nenbers that another study would be

difficult for the departnent to begin. The child welfare
eval uation project is going on through the University of Al aska.
It is «currently evaluating all of the famly preservation
prograns and will nake sone recommendations on how those can be
ref uel ed. She said that she is aware of the fact that the
division is not doing all that it should be doing with that
source of noney. Ms. Kennai stated that she's pleased this

| egislation is being introduced, but explained that the
difficult part of intensive fam |y preservation services is that
it requires a very small caseload, such as four to six cases

Even with the 20 new positions that the division will get [this
year], there wll never be only four to six caseloads [per
wor ker] . It is possible to look for contract noney to fund a

pilot program for this. She said this would work best in urban
ar eas. Ms. Kennai offered that it would be feasible to do this
in Anchorage late this year or early next year through the
Fam |ly-to-Famly initiative.

M5. KENNAI told the nenbers that the Teen Decision-mnmaking
Initiative will begin within the next two nonths. She expl ai ned
that the division will need to refer to a famly preservation
provider for many of those famlies. The famlies wll be asked
to go to a nodel that is simlar, but one that will work best
for Al aska. She noted that in nost states workers have to be
avail abl e 24-hours per day and at this point the division does
not have that <capacity in Alaska, particularly in rura

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 20- February 24, 2004



comunities. This nodel would have to be used in an urban site,
she reiterated. It would take a while to adopt it in the rural
vil | ages.

Number 1243

MS. KENNAI summarized her comrents by saying that she believes
in intensive famly preservation services, time limted
reunification services, and intensive reunification services.
She assured the nenbers that the division is on its way and is
reviewing the contracts now [in place] because they are not
acconpl i shing what needs to be done. Having said that, she said
she sees no reason to legislate this program

CHAI R W LSON asked about the contracts she nention [wth respect
to intensive famly preservation].

M5. KENNAI explained that the division gets noney from two
sources. One is fromthe general fund and the other is federa

funding from the Fam |y Support and Preservation Act. She told
the nmenbers that she has been in her job just six nonths and the
division is working toward revanping all the contracts. MVs.

Kennai said that prevention is her focus, the division is noving
in this direction, but the intensive famly prevention nodel is
expensi ve.

M5. KENNAI pointed out that if the nenbers were to |ook at what
has happened in other states, it would be found to show that
there are actually very few famlies that will fit the criteria
to benefit from a six to eight week nodel of intensive famly
preservation services. The division knows that many famlies
have al cohol and drug addiction problens and six or eight weeks
is not enough [tine] for those famlies, she said. Ms. Kennai
enphasi zed that there is a population that this works for and
would like to see it inplenented.

Nunber 1152

M5. KENNAI told that menbers that she is also working with Bil
Hogan, [Director, Division of Behavioral Health, Departnent of

Health and Social Services]. She said that she and Bill feel
that the Child and Youth Needs Assessnent may be out within the
next nont h. It identifies intensive famly services as one of
the pieces of the service array. Ms. Kennai comrented that it

m ght be funded through the Medicaid state plan. She added t hat
this is a program that not only works for children who are at
risk of comng into custody because of abuse or neglect, but

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -21- February 24, 2004



also works very well wth children who have nental health

i ssues. For exanple, when a parent calls and says that he/she
can no |longer handle his/her child. She summari zed that she
does not disagree with anything in the bill, but that she is not

sure it needs to be legislated because the division is already
noving in that direction.

CHAIR WLSON noted that Ms. Kennai did not plan on speaking
today, and appreciates her willingness to conment on this bill

M5. KENNAI thanked Representative Cissna for caring so nuch for
[ Al aska's famlies].

Number 1077

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON asked that a committee substitute be done
and brought back before the comrmittee for action. The bill was
held in committee.

ADJ CQURNMVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Heal t h, Education and Social Services Standing Committee neeting
was adjourned at 4:25 p.m

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -22- February 24, 2004



